

**UNION BAY COMMUNITY CLUB AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION
(U.B.C.C. & R.A.)
CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS**

Union Bay Community Club will be changed to "Union Bay Community Club and Recreation Association".

ARTICLE 2

Purpose: will read as follows: the purpose of the Society is to operate a recreational Society at Union Bay, British Columbia to promote, carry on, and provide facilities for sports and games of all kinds both indoor and outdoor, to provide a room or hall for the holding of public meetings, lectures, concerts, theatrical presentations, moving pictures, and other forms of entertainment and generally to provide social intercourse among the members of the Society.

PART I – BY-LAWS AND INTERPRETATION

Here set forth in numbered clause, the by-laws providing for the matters referred to in Section 6 (1) of The Societies Act and other by-laws.

1. The definitions in the Society Act on the date these by-laws become effective apply to these by-laws.
2. Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa and words importing a male include a female person.

PART 2 – MEMBERSHIP

3. Any person resident in the Union Bay Improvement District shall be eligible for membership in the Society as an active member and may be nominated as a Director of The Society. Membership application may be made to any member of the executive or a Director. Any person resident outside the limits of the Union Bay Improvement District shall be eligible for membership but have no voting powers and may not be elected as a Director. This applies to absentee land owners as well.
4. Every member shall uphold the constitution and comply with these by-laws.
5. Membership is open to all ages but only those eighteen years and older are eligible to vote and may hold a position as a Director.
6. The amount of the annual membership dues shall be determined by the directors of the Society and payable on the first day of a month each year. The dues payable by each member shall be fixed from time to time by the Board at the Annual General Meeting.
7. All members are in good standing except a member who has failed to pay his current annual membership fee or any other debt due and owing by him to the Society and he is not in good standing so long as the debt remains unpaid.
8. Any member may withdraw or resign from the Society on giving notice in writing to the Society at its registered address.

**UNION BAY COMMUNITY CLUB AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION
(U.B.C.C. & R.A.)
CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS**

9. A member whose behavior may be detrimental to the wellbeing of the Society may be expelled from the club by a special meeting of the Board.
10. A member who is subject to the proposed expulsion shall be given an opportunity to be heard at a special meeting of the directors before it is put to a vote.

PART 3 - MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

11. The Annual General Meeting shall be held at a time and place decided by the directors in accordance with the Society Act.
12. The Board shall cause notice to be given of such meetings by posting notices in newsletters and in such places for the general membership to view it.
13. The Board of directors may, whenever they think fit, and upon requisition made in writing by any six or more directors, convene a special general meeting, also by 10 percent of the membership.
14. At every general meeting twelve members present shall constitute a quorum.
15. The chairman may adjourn any meeting from time to time or from place to place. No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place. No notice need be given of any adjourned meeting.
16. No business other than the election of a chairman and other directors shall be conducted at a general meeting at a time when a quorum is not present.
17. At any meeting a resolution put to the a vote shall be decided by a show of hands, and a declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has on a show of hands been carried unanimously or by a particular majority or lost and an entry to that effect be made in the book of proceedings of the Society shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number of proportion of the votes recorded in favor of or against that resolution. On a show of hands every member present in person who is not in arrears in respect of his dues shall have one vote.
18. In case of an equality of votes the chairman shall have a casting vote, but shall not be entitled to vote otherwise.

PART 4 – APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

19. The business of the Society shall be managed by a Board of directors which shall consist of no more than fifteen (15) members all of whom shall be residents of the Union Bay Improvement District for a period of not less than twelve months prior to election. The directors shall hold office for the calendar year or until their successors are duly appointed.

**UNION BAY COMMUNITY CLUB AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION
(U.B.C.C. & R.A.)
CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS**

20. At each Annual General Meeting a new Board shall be elected by ballot and they shall hold office for the calendar year next following. The directors shall retire from office at each Annual General Meeting but are then eligible for re-election.
21. The directors may at any time and from time to time appoint a member to fill a vacancy in the directors. A Director so appointed holds office only until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting but is eligible for re-election at the meeting.
22. If a Director resigns, dies or otherwise ceases to hold office the remaining directors shall appoint a member to take the place of the former Director.
23. Should any Director be absent from three consecutive meetings of the Board, unless his absence be for good and sufficient reasons, he shall cease to be a member thereof. Removal is accomplished with notification by letter sent by the secretary representing the action of the Board of directors.
24. Full rental fee shall be charged to anyone regardless of membership status who stands to make personal gains from such rentals.
25. No Director shall be remunerated for being or acting as a Director but a Director shall be reimbursed for all expenses necessarily and reasonably incurred by him while engaged in the affairs of the Society.
26. No business personal or otherwise shall erect signs of advertisements on the property of the Union Bay Community Club and Recreation Association without the permission of the Board. This does not apply to community club events.
27. The Board will make a reasonable effort to get multiple quotes for contracts for major repairs and additions to the building or grounds of the community club that exceed \$10,000. In case of an emergency the chairman will call a meeting of the Board to approve work that must be done due to the emergency.
28. All bids to be left sealed until all the directors or the majority of thee directors are present, at that time the directors will discuss the bids and make a decision. A quorum must be present.
29. A Director of the Society who is directly or indirectly interested in a proposed contract or transaction with the Society shall not be counted in the quorum at a meeting of the directors at which the proposed contract or transaction is approved, nor does the Director have any voting privileges at this time.
 - (a) For the purpose of this section independence is the question of fact, a person is not independent if he is a Director, officer or employee of the contractor or a subsidiary of it, or if he is a partner, employee or employer or a member of the immediate family. Immediate family means spouse, parent, child or other relative of that person or relative of spouse of that family.
30. A Director may at any time, and the secretary on the request of a Director shall convene a meeting of the directors. The directors may from time to time fix the quorum necessary

**UNION BAY COMMUNITY CLUB AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION
(U.B.C.C. & R.A.)
CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS**

to transact business, the so fixed quorum must be more than half the directors then in office.

31. The directors may delegate any, but not all of their powers to committees or sub committees within itself. One Director shall be appointed to head each of the sub committees and may draw from any of the paid up general membership to complete the committees.
- (a) The members of the sub committees may meet and adjourn as they think proper.

PART 5 - PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

32. The president, or in his absence the vice-president shall preside over all meetings of the directors and the Society. The president is the chief executive officer and shall exercise a general care over the affairs of the Society.
33. The vice-president shall carry out the duties of the president during his absence.
- (a) If neither of the above is present, the directors present may choose one of their number to be chairman at that meeting.
34. The secretary shall:
- (a) conduct the correspondence of the Society,
 - (b) keep minutes of the Society and directors,
 - (c) have custody of all records and documents of the Society except those required to be kept by the Treasurer,
 - (d) issue notices of meetings of the Society and directors,
 - (e) have custody of the common seal of the Society, and
 - (f) maintain the register of members.
35. The treasurer shall:
- (a) keep the financial records, including the books of accounts necessary to comply with the societies act, and
 - (b) render financial statements to the directors, members and others when required.
36. The treasurer shall not disburse any of the Society's funds without the approval of the directors. All cheques shall be signed by two (2) Directors designated as signees by the Board.
- (a) Automatic payment plans may be entered into with the permission of the Board.
 - (b) Internet (online) payments of up to \$500.00 may be made by the Treasurer and must be reported to the Board within two (2) months. Internet payments of more than \$500.00 must have permission from the Board before being made.
37. In the absence of the secretary from a meeting, the directors shall appoint another person to act as Secretary for that meeting.

PART 6 – THE SEAL

**UNION BAY COMMUNITY CLUB AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION
(U.B.C.C. & R.A.)
CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS**

38. The directors may provide a common seal for the Society which shall never be used except by the authority of a resolution by the directors and in the presence of any one of the directors, who shall sign every instrument to which the seal has been affixed and every such instrument shall be signed by the secretary or some other person assigned to take his place.

PART 7 – BORROWING

39. In order to carry out the purposes of the Society the directors may, on behalf of and in the name of the Society, raise or secure the payment or repayment of money in the manner they decide, and in particular but without limiting the forgoing, by the issue of debentures.
40. No debenture shall be issued without the sanction of a special resolution.
41. The members may by special resolution restrict the borrowing powers of the directors, but a restriction imposed expires at the next Annual General Meeting.

PART 8 – AUDTTOR

42. The Board of Directors shall appoint an auditor to hold office for the calendar year. At each Annual General Meeting the Society shall appoint an auditor to hold office until he is re-appointed or his successor is appointed.
43. An auditor may be removed by ordinary resolution. No Director or employee of the Society shall be an auditor.

PART 9 – BYLAWS

44. On being admitted to membership, each member is entitled to, and the Society must give him on request, without charge, a copy of the constitution and by-laws of the Society.
45. These bylaws shall not be altered or added to except by special resolution.

PART 10 – BYLAWS AND ALTERATIONS

46. Any new bylaw may be made and any of the bylaws herein contained may be amended or rescinded by a special resolution of the Society as defined by the "Societies Act".
47. The rules contained here in shall govern the Union Bay Community Club & Recreation Association, in all cases to which they are applicable. Those rules that are not applicable will be governed by Roberts Rules of Order.

**UNION BAY COMMUNITY CLUB AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION
(U.B.C.C. & R.A.)
CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS**

PART 11 – OTHER PROVISIONS

48. Upon the dissolution of the Society and after payment of all debts and liabilities, its remaining property shall be distributed or disposed of to charities registered under the Income Tax Act (Canada).

49. The activities of the Society shall be carried on without purpose of gain for its members and any income, profits or other accretions to the Society shall be used in promoting the purposes of the Society.